
  

DESERT WATER AGENCY BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

APRIL 19, 2016                                                                   REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                  
 

REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL  – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 

Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  April 5, 2016  CIOFFI                       
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS –   A. Conservation & Public Affairs – April 8, 2016  CIOFFI 
                                B.  Executive – April 12, 2016  CIOFFI                         

                 
5. PUBLIC INPUT:  

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public 
may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than 
three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda. 
 

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT  - March 2016  BLOOMER                                    

  

7. ITEM FOR ACTION  
 

 A.  Water Use Violation - Civil Penalty Hearing(s)  KRAUSE 
 
8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. Groundwater Replenishment Assessment  2016/2017 Draft Engineer’s Reports  KRAUSE 
  

B. Upcoming Outreach and Events  METZGER 
 

C. March Water Production Comparison   KRAUSE 
 

D. Directors Report on NWRA Conference BLOOMER, EWING  
                                                          

9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
 

 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  

 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. Department of Interior 
 
 D. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 
 
 
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
April 19, 2016 
Page 2 

 

 E. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 1.17 acre lot North of the Northeast corner of Sunrise Way and Mesquite Avenue,  
  APN No. 502-560-038 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite HOA 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition   
  

11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

12. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person 
with a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working 
hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may 
be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8648 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

2 
MINUTES 

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 

OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

April 5, 2016 
 

DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
  Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach/Conserv. Manager ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Manager ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
 
Public: David Freedman, PS Sustainability Comm. ) 
 Kris Smith, Park Imperial Comm. Assoc. ) 
 Enieda Reboucas, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Mike Keane, Palm Springs resident ) 
 Randy Duncan, MSWD Board Member ) 
  
    

Attendance 

17437.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
   
17438.   President Cioffi called for approval of the March 15, 2016 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Ewing, the minutes were approved as written. 
 
17439.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated DWR has increased the DWA’s 2016 SWP 
water allocation from 30% to 45%. The increase is consistent with the 
current and projected hydrological conditions. The new allocation will 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 

 

Approval of 03/15/16 

Regular Board Mtg. 

Minutes  

 

 

 

 

 

 

General Manager’s 

Report 
 
 
 
SWP Allocation 
Increase 
 
 



8649 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

result in 25,086 acre-feet for DWA and 62,258 acre-feet for CVWD for a 
combined total of 87,346. Table A deliveries to the valley will most likely 
not occur in 2016 unless the allocation is increased above 60%. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on March 17 at approximately 11:15 p.m., 
stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant at Sunrise Way and Arenas Rd. The 
hydrant was damaged and had to be replaced. The water ran through a fully 
open six inch opening for approximately 20 minutes. A police report was 
made and an Agency damage report was filled out. 
 
  Mr. Krause reported on March 18 at approximately 1:50 p.m., 
staff responded to a hit fire hydrant on the North West corner of Camino 
Centro and Vereda Del Sur. This was a hit and run. Staff was able to 
replace the bolts and gasket and put the hydrant back into service. A police 
report was filed. 
 
  Continuing with fire hydrant damages, Mr. Krause stated on 
March 30 at approximately 1:40 p.m., staff responded to a hit fire hydrant at 
67555 East Palm Canyon Drive; this also was a hit and run. The hydrant 
had to be replaced and is back in service. A police report was filed. 
 
  Mr. Krause noted several meetings and activities he 
participated in during the past several weeks. 
   
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted follow up items from 
the last Board meeting; 1) DWA holds Renewable Energy Credits (REC), 
and 2) Explanation of the significant increase in recycled water facility 
expenses for February. 
 
  In response to President Cioffi, Mr. Krause replied that staff 
would look into the status of the damaged hydrant in the 700 block of 
Tahquitz Canyon. 
   
17440.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the March 30, 2016 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17441.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
 
  Randy Duncan, MSWD Board Member stated he has attended 
the last few meetings and wanted to introduce himself to the Board and 
staff. 
      
  There being no one else from the public wishing to address 
the Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period. 
 
17442.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present the civil penalty hearing for water use violations. 
 

General Manager’s 

Report 

(Cont.) 
SWP Allocation 
Increase 
 
Fire Hydrant Damage-
Sunrise/Arenas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Fire Hydrant Damage – 
Camino Centro/Vereda 
Del Sur 
 
 
 
 
 
Fire Hydrant Damage – 
East Palm Canyon 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
 
Follow Up Items – 1) 
Renewal Energy 
Credits 
2) Recycled Water 
Facility Expenses for 
February 2016 
 
Hydrant Status – 700 
Block Tahquitz Canyon 
 
 
 

Committee Reports 
Executive 03/30/16 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
Randy Duncan – 
MSWD Board Member 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Item for Action: 
Water Use Violation – 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 



8650 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

  Mr. Krause noted there have been more than 80 violations 
issued and that recipients have 7 days to request a hearing in writing. Staff 
has received 4 requests, which are being heard today. He stated the first 
appellant is Park Imperial Community Association. He noted the violations: 
1) Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., and 2) 
Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape. The fine amount is $100 and the 
reason for appeal is extenuating circumstances. 
 
  Kris Smith, representing Park Imperial Community 
Association presented a letter from its landscape company explaining the 
recent irrigation schedule. They irrigated after mowing to check for 
sprinkler head leaks. The other irrigation was for recent fire ant treatment 
by CVMVCD, which does not allow for watering for at least 3 days. She 
stated that she was not aware they can request an exception from the 
schedule. They also noted that they watered because they thought it needed 
it. Ms. Smith stated as an Association Board Member, she is pro-active in 
regards to water conservation and that she was not aware of this schedule.  
 
  Vice President Stuart stated that the landscape company 
should be responsible for any irrigation issues and should compensate the 
association for any fines they face. 
 
  Director Ewing noted that the biggest concern is with the 
runoff at the location. 
 
  President Cioffi concurred with Director Ewing. He then 
stated due to the runoff issue, he would support the fine and deny the 
appeal. 
 
  In response to Director Ewing, Agency Counsel Riddell stated 
that the Board would be deciding on: 1) Whether or not a violation 
occurred, and 2) Penalty level. 
   
  Director Ewing made a motion to uphold the violation, with a 
$50 penalty. Director Oygar seconded the motion. 
 
  Vice President Stuart expressed support of keeping the $100 
penalty. 
 
  After Director Ewing’s motion to uphold the violation, with a 
$50 penalty and Director Oygar’s second, the motion passed by a 3-2 vote 
(President Cioffi, Vice President Stuart dissenting). 
   
  Responding to Director Ewing, Mrs. Metzger said that she has 
not provided a conservation presentation to this HOA. 
 
  In response to Director Ewing, Ms. Smith stated that a water 
audit was conducted in 2014. 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 
Park Imperial 
Community Association 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Kris Smith - Park 
Imperial Community 
Association 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold Violation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8651 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

  Responding to Vice President Stuart, Mrs. Metzger stated that 
informational flyers can be provided in Spanish for the landscapers. 
 
  Mr. Krause presented information on appellant, Moya Y. 
Ervin. He noted the violations: 1) Irrigation on a restricted water day 
between the restricted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., and 2) Runoff from 
irrigation onto hardscape. The fine amount is $50 and the reason for appeal 
is she is unhappy with the fine and that Bob (DWA employee) said 
everything looked fine. Mr. Krause noted that Ms. Ervin has already paid 
the fine and is not present today. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to uphold the violation and 
deny the appeal. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the motion passed 
unanimously. 
   
  Mr. Krause presented information on appellant, Enieda 
Reboucas. He noted the violation: 1) Irrigation between restricted hours of 
7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. The fine amount is $50 and the reason for appeal is 
unfairly fined because she did not know about the restrictions. 
 
  Ms. Reboucas stated she never received information about the 
current restrictions. She noted that she lives across from a school and 
vandalism with her mailbox and sprinklers have occurred. This may be why 
she has not received information on the restrictions. She indicated that her 
son has now fixed the sprinklers. 
 
  Vice President Stuart expressed concern with the water runoff 
at the property. 
 
  Director Ewing concurred with the runoff issue and stated that 
the Agency has made extensive efforts in publicizing the current water 
restrictions. 
 
  President Cioffi made a motion to uphold the violation and 
deny the appeal. After a second by Vice President Stuart, the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
  Mr. Krause presented information on appellant, Mike Keane. 
He noted the violation: 1) Irrigation observed on a restricted day between 
the restricted hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m., and 2) Runoff from 
irrigation onto hardscape. The fine amount is $50 and there was no reason 
given for his appeal. Mr. Krause noted that the restricted hour’s violation 
should be removed from this violation, since the photo did not show the 
current watering time. 
 
  Mr. Keane stated that he lives in a very windy area and that is 
the reason for runoff. He indicated that he did water before 7:00 a.m. on a 
restricted day. There is only so much that can be done to avoid the water 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 
 
Moya Y. Ervin 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold Violation 
 
 
 
 
 
Enieda Reboucas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold Violation 
 
 
 
 
 
Mike Keane 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8652 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

restrictions, due to the windy area. He stated he does not have a smart 
controller, but has tried different sprinkler heads. 
 
  Vice President Stuart stated he also had wind issues when 
watering his lawn, but eventually converted to desert landscape. 
 
  Mr. Keane asked for suggestions so he would not be fined for 
runoff onto hardscape every time he waters. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to uphold the violation, deny 
the appeal, recommend installing a smart controller, and allow Mr. Keane 
60 days to submit receipts for low spray/stream sprinkler heads, in order for 
his fine to be refunded up to $50. Director Oygar seconded the motion, 
which passed unanimously. 
 
17443.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to 
present staff’s request for authorization to reallocate 2015/2016 main 
oversizing budget. 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated on February 22, 2016, the City of Palm 
Springs notified the Agency of a storm drain project within Hermosa Drive 
that is scheduled to start construction in July and will require the relocation 
of three water mains. The estimated costs for Agency crews to relocate the 
3 mains is $100,000. Currently there is not an allocation of funds in the 
budget for this work. The 2015/2016 budget includes Work Order 15-699 
for main oversizing participation, with a budget amount of $100,000. Staff 
does not anticipate participating in a main oversizing project by June 2016, 
therefore, is requesting authorization to reallocate this budget to cover costs 
associated with the main relocation work to facilitate the installation of the 
City’s proposed storm drain. 
 
  President Cioffi noted that Agency staff and City staff will be 
working together to discuss future projects prior to budget meetings, so 
there will not be a need for reallocating. 
 
  Director Ewing made a motion to approve staff’s request to 
reallocate the 2015/2016 main oversizing budget. After a second by Vice 
President Stuart, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
17444.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to 
present staff’s request for authorization to call for bids for the construction 
of the zone 1240 booster plant (Desert Palisade). 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated the 2015/2016 Capital Improvement 
Budget includes Work Order 15-150-B for the installation of Zone 1240 
Booster Plant, which is located inside the Desert Palisade tract. This plant 
will provide service to 54 lots of the 110 lots within the upper zone. The 
current budget amount for this work order is $950,000 to include 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
Civil Penalty Hearings 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Uphold Violation – 
Grant 60 days to 
provide receipts for low 
spray sprinkler heads 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
to Reallocate 
2015/2016 Main 
Oversizing Budget 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Authorization 
to Call for Bids 
(Constructing Zone 
1240 Booster Plant-
Desert Palisade) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8653 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

engineering, construction, inspection and overhead costs. To date, $61,800 
has been spent on engineering design. 
 
  Continuing with his report, Mr. Johnson noted that the 
original engineer’s construction cost estimate was $800,000. Recently, 
similar plants designed by Krieger & Stewart, Inc. (K&S) for other water 
districts have received bids at higher costs; therefore, staff asked K&S to 
evaluate the estimate based on these bid amounts. After reviewing the 
figures, K&S’s construction cost estimate is $1,130,000. Staff anticipates 
the budget will need to be augmented for $500,000 as part of the 2016/2017 
budget. Upon receiving bids, staff will re-evaluate the augmentation 
amount. With authorization granted today, the bid opening will be held on 
May 10. Once the bid is received, staff will determine if an augmentation is 
needed and will notify the Board at the May 17 meeting. The award of 
contract is also scheduled for said meeting. If awarded, completion of work 
is scheduled for January 2017. Staff requests authorization to advertise for 
bids for constructing the Zone 1240 Booster Plant. 
 
  In response to Director Oygar, Mr. Johnson replied there has 
been an increase for building and electrical costs. 
 
  Director Oygar made a motion to approve staff’s requests to 
advertise for bids for constructing the Zone 1240 Booster Plant. After a 
second by Director Ewing, the motion passed unanimously. 
 
17445.  President Cioffi asked Finance Director Krieger to present 
staff’s request for approval to begin the process of advanced refunding 2007 
certificates of participation. 
 
  Mr. Krieger stated staff has reached out to Hilltop Securities 
to explore the feasibility of Advanced Refunding (refinancing) our 2007 
certificate of participation issue (COP). He noted with the bond market 
interest rates at historical lows, this is an opportune time to refinance the 
Agency’s certificates. The certificates were issued for a 30 year term at a 
cost of $26,860,000. There is approximately 21 years remaining in the 
amount of $21,420,000. The purpose for refinancing is to reduce the 
Agency’s debt service obligations. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krieger stated if the Agency is able 
to refinance the certificates; it will result in savings of approximately 
$240,000 per year and cumulatively in excess of $5,000,000 over the 
remaining life of the certificates. Staff requests board approval to begin the 
process of advanced refunding of the Agency’s 2007 certificates of 
participation. When the process is finalized, staff will present the final 
summary for Board approval. 
 
  Vice President Stuart made a motion to approve staff’s 
request. Director Oygar seconded the motion, which carried unanimously. 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
Call for Bids – Zone 
1240 Booster Plant  
(Desert Palisade) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Request Approval to 
Begin Process of 
Advanced Refunding 
2007 COP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8654 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

17446.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No. 1129 supporting the 
nomination of Kristin Bloomer for LAFCO representative. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated the Riverside Local Agency Formation 
Commission (LAFCO) has announced the nomination period for the 
appointment process of a regular member and an alternate member of the 
Riverside LAFCO. He noted the nomination period is from March 29 
through April 29. There will be two positions to be voted on, one position 
will be for the Regular Special District Member from the eastern portion of 
the County and the second position will be for an Alternate Special District 
Member from any district within Riverside County. Staff recommends the 
Board adopt Resolution No. 1129 in support of Kristin Bloomer’s 
nomination for the position of Regular Special District Member.  
 
  In response to Director Ewing, Assistant Secretary Baca 
stated the election will be conducted by mail sometime in May. 
 
  Director Oygar moved to approve staff’s recommendation for 
adoption of Resolution No. 1129. After a second by Vice President Stuart, 
the motion carried unanimously. 
 
17447.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the March 16, 2016 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State 
Water Project Contractors Authority (SWPCA) and March 17, 2016 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water Contractors, Inc. 
(SWC). 
 
  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) 
SWPCA Board meeting, 2) Stockton Ship Channel Aeration Facilities, 3) 
Expansion of Cal-ISO, 4) Economic Analysis of California Water Fix, 5) 
Bio-Acoustic Barriers in Georgiana Slough, and 6) State Water Supply.  
 
17448.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included media and 
public information reports for March 2016. 
   
17449.  Director Ewing, Vice President Stuart and Secretary-
Treasurer Bloomer noted their attendance at the OnePS picnic this past 
weekend.  
   
17450.  At 9:37 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing  Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Desert Water Agency vs. U.S. 
Department of Interior; (D) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government 

Action Items: 
(Cont.) 
 
Request Adoption of 
Resolution No. 1129 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Discussion: 
State Water Project 
Contractors Authority 
Meeting – 03/16/16 & 
State Water Contractors 
Meeting – 03/17/16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Public Information – 

March 2016 
 
 
Directors 

Comments/Requests 
OnePS Picnic 
Attendance 
 
 

Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C. Existing Litigation – 
DWA vs. U.S. Dept. of 
Interior 
 



8655 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 04/05/16 

 

Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert 
Water Agency; and (E) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.8, Property-APN 502-560-038, Agency Negotiators: 
Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Assistant 
General Manager, Negotiating Parties: Chris Thomsen, New Mesquite 
HOA, Under Negotiation: Price and terms of possible acquisition.  
  
17451.  At 11:15 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
 
17452.  President Cioffi adjourned the meeting in memory of John 
Sanborn at 11:16 a.m. 
 
  

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         James Cioffi, President                                  

 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

Closed Session: 
(Cont.) 
D. Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators  
 
 
 

 

Reconvene – No 

Reportable Action 

 

 

Adjournment - In 

Memory of John 

Sanborn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

Page 1 of 6 

 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
APRIL 19, 2016 

  
  

 
 

On April 1 staff responded to a damaged fire service vault at 68929 Perez Rd. at approximately 
8:30 a.m.  This vault is located next to a driveway. A semi-truck pulling a trailer may have run over 
it pulling into the driveway. The business owner said that he did not know what or when it 
happened. Staff notified Cathedral City Police and filed an incident report. Repairs have been 
made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 



Page 2 of 6 

 

 
 
 

 
On April 7 at approximately 8:00 p.m. stand-by responded to a hit fire hydrant on Ave. Caballeros, 
South of Tahquitz Canyon Way. The police told staff that it was a drunk driver and they caught 
him. The gasket and bolts were replaced and the hydrant is back in service. A police report was 
made. The water loss was six inch fully open for approximately forty minutes.              
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 



Page 3 of 6 

 

 
 

 
On April 8 at approximately 9:30 a.m. staff responded to a hit one inch backflow at 68352 Perez 
Rd. Authorization was given for staff to make the necessary repairs.  The repairs have been made 
and the backflow is back in service. A police report was made and the water loss was metered.   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
On April 10 at approximately 10:00 p.m., stand-by responded to a hit four inch air-vac on Hwy. 
111 on the Snow Creek line. Staff shut the air-vac valve off. There was no water loss. A police 
report was made. Repairs were made and the air-vac is back in service. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Page 5 of 6 

 

 
 
 
 
 

General Manager’s Meetings and Activities 
 
Meetings: 
 

On April 5, the Legislative Adhoc Committee met and discussed the following: 

 Conference call with Bob Reeb for update on DWA Legislative Positions 
  No significant changes in legislation that DWA has taken positions on. 
 
  ACWA’s Position on Proposed Amendment to Article X, California Constitution 

  ACWA has backed away from the amendment for lack of support. 
 
 4/5/16  Legislative Adhoc Committee Meeting 
 4/7/16  Salt Nutrient Management Plan Policy Meeting with CVWD, IWA and  
   RWQCB 
 4/8/16  Chrome 6 Meeting with CVWD, MSWD, IWA, CWA, Coachella Valley Unified 
   School District, Desert Sands School District, State Water Resources Control 
   Board  (Drinking Water Division), County of Riverside Environmental Services 
 4/8/16  Conservation and Public Affairs Committee Meeting 
 4/12/16 Executive Committee Meeting 
 4/12/16 SWC’s Conference call on Site’s Reservoir 
 4/13/16 Meeting with DWA Employee Association on Salary Survey 
 4/14/16 Conference call with BB&K regarding Tax Law Suit 

 

Activities: 

 E-Billing 
 Well 6  and Well 32 Water Quality Remediation issues 
 Whitewater Ranch Water Service Agreement 
 Rate Study 
 Facility Charges Study 
 Replenishment Assessment Charge 
 Mission Creek Recharge Basin Percolation Rates 
 Snow Creek Historic Generation Capacity 
 Whitewater Hydro SCE contract extension 
 SWP/DWA tax rates 
 ACBCI PRA Whitewater Mutual Water Company 
 Appointment as Alternative Board Member of State and Federal Contractors Water 
 Authority and Delta Specific Project Committee 

 Property Acquisition - New Mesquite HOA 
 MSWD Law Suit 
  MSWD Basin Boundary Modification – Garnet Hill Sub-Area 
 Yuba Water Order 

 Snow Creek Security 
 



Page 6 of 6 

 

 
 

Follow-up Items: 

Question: Who introduced legislation for Cal-ISO? 

Answer: SB350 was introduced by Senator De Leon 

 

Question:  The fire hydrant in the 700 block of Tahquitz Canyon is back in service.  

 

 
 

Reminder: 
 
Due to the majority of Board and staff attending ACWA’s Spring Conference, the May 3, 2016 
Board meeting will be cancelled. 

 

 
 
 

Reminder:  

There will be a Special Board meeting on June 28 (FY 2016/2017 Budgets) 

 

 

































7-A 

2016/mark/041916penaltyhearingstaffreport 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 
RE: WATER USE VIOLATION – CIVIL PENALTY HEARINGS 
 
Starting after the March 1st board meeting, staff began issuing water use violations 

under the new ordinance; more than 164 violations have been issued.  Recipients of the 

violations have 7 days to request a hearing in writing.  Staff has received two such 

requests for a hearing on the violations since the last hearing on April 5. Both violations 

have hearings scheduled for today’s board meeting. 

The following is a summary of the procedure for the hearings. 

Staff has provided the Board with the correspondence for each of the violations 

including photographic evidence.  Photographs will also be projected during the hearing 

to provide the board and customer a common point of reference for discussion. 

Staff will introduce each violation with a summary of the event.  After the introduction 

the customer will be invited by the Board to speak concerning the violation.  If the 

recipient of the violation is not present or does not wish to speak, staff will read the 

violation summary and submit the written petition into the record for board action. 

Each petition will be discussed and voted on separately. 

As a point of reference, Staff has notified Agency customers concerning water 

conservation regulations in several different ways: 

Recent Notifications 

1. Published the ordinance in The Public Record 

2. Published the ordinance in the Agency Website 

3. Social media outlets 

4. KMIR, KESQ, KPCC, the Joey English Show 

5. Desert Sun Valley Voice 

6. Palm Desert Patch 

7. Email to Palm Springs and Cathedral City Chambers 

8. Emails to HOA in our contact list 

9. Emails to high volume users 

 



2016/mark/041916penaltyhearingstaffreport 

 

 

 

Comprehensive Notifications – Since June 2015 

1. Direct mail to all customers 

2. Bill Inserts 

3. Bill on envelope messaging 

4. Billboards 

5. Online advertising (KESQ) 

6. Television advertising (Time Warner) 

7. Social media 

8. Several public presentations on TV 

9. Print and radio Interviews 

10. DWA and CVWD websites 

 



1. Seven Lakes Homeowners Association 

 

a. On Friday March 25th, at approximately 8:45 a.m., a Desert Water Agency 

representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 

them. 

i. Irrigating between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 

ii. Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape. 

 

b. Fine amount $100 

i. Commercial - HOA 

ii. First violation  

 

c. Reason for petition 

i. Landscaper was testing irrigation system.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  













2. Julie Hewett, 664 So Camino Real 

 

a. On Tuesday, April 5, at approximately 10:00 a.m., a Desert Water Agency 

representative observed water use violations at said address and reported 

them. 

 

i. Irrigation was observed on a Tuesday (a restricted watering day) 

between the restricted hours of 7 a.m. and 7 p.m. 

ii. Runoff from irrigation onto hardscape occurred. 

 

b. Fine amount $100 

i. Commercial - Multifamily 

ii. First Violation 

 

c. Reason for petition 

i. Landscaper was working on irrigation timer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















 

 

8-A 

 
 
 

STAFF REPORT TO  
DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 
 
RE: DRAFT GROUNDWATER REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT ENGINEERING 

SURVEY AND REPORTS FOR WHITEWATER RIVER, MISSION CREEK AND 
GARNET HILL SUBBASINS 

 

 
 
Section 15.4(b) of Desert Water Agency Law, which pertains to replenishment 

assessments, provides that:  

 

"By May 1 of each year the Board shall cause to be prepared and presented 

to it an engineering survey and report concerning the groundwater supplies 

within the Agency.  Such report shall include the condition of such 

groundwater supplies, the need for replenishment, and recommendations for 

any replenishment program, including the source and amount of 

replenishment water and the cost of purchasing, transporting and spreading 

such water.  In connection with any proposed replenishment program, the 

report shall describe the area or areas benefited, either directly or indirectly, 

the amount of water production in each such area during the prior year, and 

shall recommend the amount of assessment to be levied upon all production 

within such area or areas of benefit." 

 

Section 15.4(c) provides that: 

 

"If the Board determines that funds should be raised by a replenishment 

assessment, it shall call a public hearing, and shall publish notice at least 10 

days in advance thereof pursuant to Section 6061 of the Government Code.  

Notice shall also be mailed by the Agency to all producers as disclosed by 

the records of the Agency who may be affected by the recommended 

assessment.  Failure of any affected producers to receive such notice shall 

not affect the validity of any subsequent replenishment assessment.  The 

notice shall contain a description of each area of benefit, the amount of each 

recommended replenishment assessment, and an invitation to all interested 

parties to attend and be heard in support of or in opposition to the proposed 

assessment.  The notice shall also state that a copy of the engineering report 

is available for inspection at the office of the Agency." 



 

2 
 

 

 

Consulting Engineer Krieger & Stewart has prepared a Draft Engineer's Report on 

Groundwater Replenishment and Assessment Program for Desert Water Agency 

2016/2017, which is enclosed herewith. This draft is presented today for discussion 

purposes only. A final report will be presented at a public meeting set for May 17, 2016 

and a determination made that funds should be raised by a replenishment assessment for 

Board acceptance. Staff will request authorization to set a public hearing for the June 7, 

2016 Board meeting. A Notice of Public Hearing will be published in The Public Record on 

May 24, 2016 and a Notice of Public Hearing will be sent to all producers (over 10 acre 

feet production) who will be affected by the recommended assessment. 
 
DWA's proposed replenishment assessment rate for 2016/2017 is $102.00 per acre foot 

for Whitewater River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins.  

 

CVWD's proposed replenishment assessment rate for 2016/2017 is $145.60 per acre foot 

for Whitewater River Subbasin. 

 

CVWD’s proposed replenishment assessment rate for 2016/2017 is $123.20 per acre foot 

for Mission Creek River Subbasin.     

 

DWA’s proposed replenishment rate would remain the same as 2015/2016 to allow time to 

comply with Proposition 218 requirements before the rate is increased. Rate increases will 

be considered in the upcoming Proposition 218 process scheduled for later this year. A 

rate increase, if approved, will not take effect until July 1, 2017. 

 

Due to recent dramatic increases in the charges for imported water, replenishment costs 

have risen dramatically. Delta related charges have more than doubled from less than 

$100,000,000/yr. in 2015 to more than $200,000,000/yr. projected for 2016. This level of 

spending is expected to continue and increase steadily into the future. Conservation has 

reduced replenishing assessment revenue by approximately 20% or $700,000. This level 

of conservation is expected to continue as long as drought conditions persist. What the 

long term residual level of conservation will be after the state drought restrictions are lifted 

is difficult to determine.  However, for this report we are expecting conservation to continue 

at a level of at least 10% using 2014 water production as a baseline. 

 

The 5 year rate increase adopted by the Board in 2010 did not anticipate the current Delta 

charge increases or the current level of increased water conservation. In 2010 Delta 

charges had been projected to decrease in the future allowing for the full recovery of costs 

through the replenishment assessment charge. Now, in order to stabilize water rates, we 

must rely on using our State Water Project reserve account to make up the difference. 

Going forward starting in 2017, the replenishment assessment should be gradually 

increased over a short number of years such that it will ultimately cover each year’s 

charges for imported water with no further short fall accrual. 

 

 



8-A 

 

 

 
Copies of the DRAFT 

Engineer’s Reports on the  
 

2016 / 2017 
Groundwater Replenishment  

Assessment Program for 
 

Mission Creek Subbasin 
Whitewater River Subbasin 

Garnet Hill Subbasin 
 

are available for review  
upon request 

 

 

 

 
 



8-B 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 
 

RE: UPCOMING OUTREACH & EVENTS 

 

The following is a list of upcoming events for the Outreach and Conservation 

department: 

 

Wednesday, April 20, 5:00 p.m. at UCR – Palm Desert  – Regional Water Rate 

Forum – deliver welcome and overview of CV Water Counts. 

Thursday, April 21, noon at PS Fire Training Center  – ONE-PS Brown Bag 

Lunch – update on conservation and drought penalties.  

Friday, April 22 at 12:15 p.m. at 275 N. El Cielo – Desert Oasis Healthcare – 

conservation overview for staff. 

Saturday, April 23, 9:30 a.m. at Mizell Senior Center – Sunrise Villas Annual 

HOA meeting. 

Wednesday, May 4, 3:30 p.m. at conference location TBD – ACWA 

Communications Committee Program – water rate messaging. 

Friday, May 13, 8:15 a.m. departs from DWA Headquarters  – DWA Facilities 

Tour. 

 



8-C 

Page 1 of 2 

 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
APRIL 19, 2016 

 
RE: MARCH 2016 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 15 percent reduction in total water 

production during March 2016 compared to the same month in 2013 – the baseline year 

used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to measure 

statewide conservation achievements. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative water savings 

June through March is 26 percent. 

To comply with Governor Brown’s November 13, 2015 Executive Order to continue 

reducing statewide water use, the State Water Board extended mandatory restrictions 

and updated mandatory conservation goals for some urban areas based on factors like 

climate, growth and sustainable supply. The adopted regulations require DWA to 

achieve a mandatory 32 percent reduction. For reports submitted to the state for 

consumption February through October 2016, the mandatory reduction will be lowered 

to 32 percent pursuant to the extension of the emergency regulation. These targets will 

be discussed by the State Water Board again before the end of May. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for March 2016.  

Water Production for March 2016 1,698.4 AF 

Water Production for March 2013 1,989.2 AF 

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, 

and institutional users for the reporting month 

520.5 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production 

going to residential use only for the reporting month 

65% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 105,385 

Estimated R-GPCD  109.9 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 

conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

187 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 

actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

169 



  

Page 2 of 2 

 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, 

warning letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a 

violation of conservation rules? 

162 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation 

of conservation rules? 

122 

Comments: Desert Water Agency streamlined its water use violation policy starting 

March 1, 2016. 

The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a complex 

task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data on a per 

capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent population 

of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use in DWA’s 

service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the correct 

population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per Capita Per 

Day (R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 

month of March was 2,660,015.2 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 86,693 

acre feet. If our recycled water production for March was taken into consideration 

against our potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several 

percentage points higher. 

 


	04 19 16 Board Agenda
	Item 2 040516 Board Minutes
	2
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 04 19 16 GM report
	APRIL 19, 2016

	Item 4A Conserv PA 040816 minutes
	Item 4B Exec Comm 041216 minutes
	Item 6 March Treasurer Rpt
	Item 7A 04 19 16 Penalty hearings staff report
	Item 8A 041916 Staff Rpt MC - Draft Eng Report-c1
	Item 8A Memo - DRAFT Engineers Report on GW Replenish avail on request 2016
	Item 8B 04 19 16 Events Staff Report
	Item 8C 04 19 16 March Water Use reduction staff report

